Offering Memorandum: Part II of Offering Document (Exhibit A to Form C)

Innovega Inc.
11031 Via Frontera, Ste. A
San Diego, CA 92127
https://innovega.io/

Up to $4,999,998.00 in Common Stock at $3.00
Minimum Target Amount: $9,999.00

A crowdfunding investment involves risk. You should not invest any funds in this offering unless you can afford to lose your
entire investment.

In making an investment decision, investors must rely on their own examination of the issuer and the terms of the offering,
including the merits and risks involved. These securities have not been recommended or approved by any federal or state
securities commission or regulatory authority. Furthermore, these authorities have not passed upon the accuracy or
adequacy of this document.

The U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission does not pass upon the merits of any securities offered or the terms of the
offering, nor does it pass upon the accuracy or completeness of any offering document or literature.

These securities are offered under an exemption from registration; however, the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission
has not made an independent determination that these securities are exempt from registration.

In the event that we become a reporting company under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, we intend to take advantage of
the provisions that relate to "Emerging Growth Companies” under the JOBS Act of 2012, including electing to delay
compliance with certain new and revised accounting standards under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.



Company:

Company: Innovega Inc.

Address: 11031 Via Frontera, Ste. A, San Diego, CA 92127
State of Incorporation: DE

Date Incorporated: June 23, 2008

Terms:

Equity

Offering Minimum: $9,999.00 | 3,333 shares of Common Stock
Offering Maximum: $4,999,998.00 | 1,666,666 shares of Common Stock
Type of Security Offered: Common Stock

Purchase Price of Security Offered: $3.00

Minimum Investment Amount (per investor): $498.00

Voting Rights of Securities Sold in this Offering

Voting Proxy. Each Subscriber shall appoint the Chief Executive Officer of the Company (the “CEQ”), or his or her
successor, as the Subscriber’s true and lawful proxy and attorney, with the power to act alone and with full power of
substitution, to, consistent with this instrument and on behalf of the Subscriber, (i) vote all Securities, (ii) give and receive
notices and communications, (iii) execute any instrument or document that the CEO determines is necessary or appropriate
in the exercise of its authority under this instrument, and (iv) take all actions necessary or appropriate in the judgment of
the CEO for the accomplishment of the foregoing. The proxy and power granted by the Subscriber pursuant to this Section
are coupled with an interest. Such proxy and power will be irrevocable. The proxy and power, so long as the Subscriber is an
individual, will survive the death, incompetency and disability of the Subscriber and, so long as the Subscriber is an entity,
will survive the merger or reorganization of the Subscriber or any other entity holding the Securities. However, the Proxy
will terminate upon the closing of a firm-commitment underwritten public offering pursuant to an effective registration
statement under the Securities Act of 1933 covering the offer and sale of Common Stock or the effectiveness of a
registration statement under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 covering the Common Stock.

“Maximum number of shares offered subject to adjustment for bonus shares. See Bonus info below.

Investment Incentives and Bonuses

Loyalty Bonus: 10% bonus shares for previous investors and select loyal supporters.

Time-Based Perks

Early Bird 1: Invest $1,000+ within the first 2 weeks and receive 7% bonus shares

Early Bird 2: Invest $5,000+ within the first 2 weeks and receive 10% bonus shares

Early Bird 3: Invest $10,000+ within the first 2 weeks and receive 13% bonus shares

Early Bird 4: Invest $20,000+ within the first 2 weeks and receive 15% bonus shares

Early Bird 5: Invest $30,000+ within the first 2 weeks and receive 30% bonus shares

Early Bird 6: Invest $50,000+ within the first 2 weeks and receive 35% bonus shares

Amount-Based Perks

Tier 1: Invest $1,000+ and receive 5% bonus shares

Tier 2: Invest $5,000+ and receive 7% bonus shares

Tier 3: Invest $10,000+ and receive 10% bonus shares

Tier 4: Invest $20,000+ and receive 13% bonus shares

Tier 5: Invest $30,000+ and receive 20% bonus shares

Tier 6: Invest $50,000+ and receive 25% bonus shares

*In order to receive perks from an investment, one must submit a single investment in the same offering that meets the
minimum perk requirement. Bonus shares from perks will not be granted if an investor submits multiple investments that,
when combined, meet the perk requirement. All perks occur when the offering is completed.



Crowdfunding investments made through a self-directed IRA cannot receive non-bonus share perks due to tax laws. The
Internal Revenue Service (IRS) prohibits self-dealing transactions in which the investor receives an immediate, personal
financial gain on investments owned by their retirement account. As a result, an investor must refuse those non-bonus
share perks because they would be receiving a benefit from their IRA account.

The 10% StartEngine Venture Club Bonus

Innovega Inc. will offer 10% additional bonus shares for all investments that are committed by investors that are eligible for
the StartEngine Venture Club.

This means eligible StartEngine shareholders will receive a 10% bonus for any shares they purchase in this offering. For
example, if you buy 100 shares of Common Stock at $3.00 / share, you will receive 110 shares of Common Stock, meaning
you’ll own 110 shares for $300. Fractional shares will not be distributed and share bonuses will be determined by rounding
down to the nearest whole share.

This 10% Bonus is only valid during the investor’s eligibility period. Investors eligible for this bonus will also have priority if
they are on a waitlist to invest and the company surpasses its maximum funding goal. They will have the first opportunity to
invest should room in the offering become available if prior investments are canceled or fail.

Investors will receive the highest single bonus they are eligible for among the bonuses based on the amount invested and
the time of offering elapsed (if any). Eligible investors will also receive the Venture Club Bonus and the Loyalty Bonus in
addition to the aforementioned bonus.

Service Program Fee: For this offering, the issuer pays StartEngine Primary a fixed monthly Service Program Fee for investor
outreach. Our representatives may contact investors and recommend this offering, and they may be compensated for that
outreach. Any such compensation comes from the StartEngine Primary's existing placement fee and does not increase the
investor's costs.

The Company and its Business

Company Overview
Company Overview

Innovega Inc. (or the “Company”) specializes in developing next-generation smart glasses and contact lenses designed to
help restore reading and distance vision for visually impaired and legally blind patients. The Company aims to serve a
market of 295 million individuals with vision impairments, offering a more compact and socially acceptable alternative to
bulky assistive vision devices.

Business Model

Innovega is exploring two business models: (1) Licensing its technology to established eyewear and electronics companies,
leveraging existing distribution networks and manufacturing capabilities, and (2) A subscription model where users
purchase the glasses and opt for premium software or custom contact lenses via a subscription plan.

Intellectual Property

Innovega has filed 80 patents across 14 families of intellectual property (IP), covering smart glasses and nano nano-
technology-based contact lenses. The Company also has trade secrets related to material fabrication and software
integration.

Clinical and Regulatory Development of Innovega's Smart Contact Lens Technology

Innovega, Inc. is developing a novel contact lens technology regulated as a Class Il medical device under the oversight of
the U.S. Food and Drug Administration (FDA). The company is pursuing a two-step market clearance strategy aligned with
the FDA’s 510(k) for obtaining market clearance of the base lens material, and an Investigational Device Exemption (IDE)
pathway for the display lens that will support the iOptik(R) product lines.

To date, Innovega has:
1. Completed Phase | toxicology and material safety studies.

2. Conducted multiple Phase Il feasibility and functional performance studies, including those assessing lens comfort,
orientation stability, and visual acuity, across a broad range of subjects.

3. Completed two pivotal Phase III trials on its base contact lens (without embedded display lens features) with performance
compared to a commercially available predicate lens. These trials are aligned with the company’s planned 510(k)
submission.

4. Engaged in a Pre-Submission Conference with the FDA which advised that the base lens be submitted through the 510(k)



process to establish a regulatory predicate for later comparisons.

The company continues to conduct Phase Il trials for lens optimization on both the base lens and the display lens designs.
These trials are in response to improvements achieved in the lens mass-production manufacturing methods for the display
lens, which incorporates a novel polarizing filter for enabling the display vision. The display lens has not yet entered Phase
I11 trials, pending completion of a formal IDE submission to the FDA once the base lens Phase III data collection is
complete.

Each clinical study undertaken by Innovega has been conducted under Institutional Review Board (IRB) oversight, with
approximately ten IRB-approved studies to date, including two that have carried forward into the current Phase III activities
on the base lens.

Innovega is working with a regulatory consultant and contract research organization to finalize its 510(k) premarket
notification and plans to pursue IDE authorization for the advanced lens in a subsequent phase of its development program.

Competitors and Industry
Competitors

Primary competitors include eSight, IrisVision, and Vision Buddy, which provide digital magnifiers and VR-based headsets.
Innovega differentiates itself with lightweight, socially acceptable eyewear offering customizable digital prescriptions and
enhanced usability.

Industry Overview

The global market for assistive vision technology is valued in the billions of dollars, driven by an aging population and
increasing prevalence of retinal diseases. Existing solutions remain inadequate, creating an opportunity for advanced
wearable solutions like Innovega's.

Current Stage and Roadmap
Current Stage

Innovega has completed FDA Phase I initial safety testing on its base lens and is continuing to complete Phase Il functional
testing throughout 2025. The Company is continuing to transition from R&D to commercialization. The Company has
secured partnerships, including a Letter of Intent with Vispero, the world's largest provider of assistive vision aids.

Innovega's device system, comprising proprietary contact lenses and smart glasses, is regulated by the U.S. Food and Drug
Administration (FDA) as a medical device. Based on the intended use and the patient population served, specifically
individuals who are legally blind or severely visually impaired, the product is anticipated to be classified as a Class III
medical device. This classification requires FDA approval through the Premarket Approval (PMA) process, which is the most
rigorous of the FDA's pathways and involves substantial clinical evidence and strict manufacturing controls.

The completed FDA Phase I trial was an IRB-approved, first-in-human study focused on evaluating the safety and
tolerability of Innovega's soft contact lens materials in healthy adult volunteers. No serious adverse events were reported.
The planned Phase II trial, expected in 2025, will evaluate the device's visual performance and functional benefits for
patients with significant vision impairment. The results of this study are intended to support the Company's future
submission of a PMA application to the FDA.

Future Roadmap

The Company aims to finalize manufacturing partnerships, initiate clinical trials for regulatory approvals, and expand into
international markets, subject to regulatory and funding milestones.. It also plans to enhance Al-driven vision assistance
features.

The Team
Officers and Directors

Name: Steve Willey
Steve Willey's current primary role is with the Issuer.
Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

e Position: CEO, President, Director
Dates of Service: June, 2011 - Present
Responsibilities: Stephen is Chief Executive Officer and President. He receives $187,200 in salary and owns 27.4% of
the company's equity.



Other business experience in the past three years:

e Employer: Axion Ventures
Title: Board Member
Dates of Service: October, 2016 - Present
Responsibilities: Independent Board Member and Member of Audit Committee

Name: Arthur Zhang
Arthur Zhang's current primary role is with the Issuer.
Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

e Position: Chief Technology Officer
Dates of Service: January, 2024 - Present
Responsibilities: Arthur guides the go-to-market strategy in low vision and defines the product roadmap. Arthur earns
a part-time salary of approximately $250,000.

Other business experience in the past three years:

¢ Employer: Apple, Inc.
Title: Senior Manager
Dates of Service: January, 2015 - December, 2023
Responsibilities: Led Architecture, Systems Engineering, and Systems Infrastructure teams.

Other business experience in the past three years:

e Employer: Gridware
Title: Director, Hardware Product (Part-Time)
Dates of Service: March, 2025 - July, 2025
Responsibilities: Defining Hardware roadmap.

Name: Jay Marsh

Jay Marsh's current primary role is with 3D Systems. Jay Marsh currently services 10 hours per week in their role with the
[ssuer.

Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

e Position: Senior VP Engineering (Fractional)
Dates of Service: April, 2013 - Present
Responsibilities: Jay's role is to lead the design activities in San Diego for all contact lens and eyewear solutions
required to demonstrate our technology and develop business relationships with investors and collaborators. He earns
a part-time salary of approximately $45,000. Jay spends 10 hours a week at Innovega.

Other business experience in the past three years:

e Employer: 3D Systems
Title: Principal, Design Engineer
Dates of Service: December, 2024 - Present
Responsibilities: Jay provides electro-mechanical design for an advanced Metal 3D printer development program. He
also assists with Project Management and Team Leadership including Systems Engineering. Jay spends up to 40 hours
a week at 3D Systems.

Name: Vijay Raghavan
Vijay Raghavan's current primary role is with the Issuer.
Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

e Position: Member of Innovega's Board of Directors, Chief Financial Officer (fractional role)
Dates of Service: January, 2025 - Present



Responsibilities: Member of Board and Chairperson of Audit Committee

Other business experience in the past three years:

e Employer: NLM Photonics
Title: Chief Financial Officer (Fractional)
Dates of Service: January, 2024 - Present
Responsibilities: Recruited by NLM founders for providing strategic guidance on fundraising leading
Accounting/Finance function

Other business experience in the past three years:

e Employer: SEIU 775 Benefits Group
Title: Chief Financial Officer
Dates of Service: May, 2024 - June, 2025
Responsibilities: Lead financial stewardship culture, advising on resource planning and investments for health
benefits, retirement, and workforce development.

Risk Factors

The SEC requires the company to identify risks that are specific to its business and its financial condition. The company is
still subject to all the same risks that all companies in its business, and all companies in the economy, are exposed to. These
include risks relating to economic downturns, political and economic events and technological developments (such as
hacking and the ability to prevent hacking). Additionally, early-stage companies are inherently more risky than more
developed companies. You should consider general risks as well as specific risks when deciding whether to invest.

These are the risks that relate to the Company:

Uncertain Risk

An investment in the Company (also referred to as "we", "us”, "our”, or the "Company”) involves a high degree of risk and
should only be considered by those who can afford the loss of their entire investment. Furthermore, the purchase of any
securities should only be undertaken by persons whose financial resources are sufficient to enable them to indefinitely
retain an illiquid investment. Each investor in the Company should research thoroughly any offering before making an
investment decision and consider all of the information provided regarding the Company as well as the following risk
factors, in addition to the other information in the Company’'s Form C. The following risk factors are not intended, and shall
not be deemed to be, a complete description of the commercial, financial, and other risks inherent in the investment in the
Company.

Our business projections are only projections

There can be no assurance that the Company will meet its projections. There can be no assurance that the Company will be
able to find sufficient demand for its product or service, that people think it's a better option than a competing product or
service, or that we will be able to provide a product or service at a level that allows the Company to generate revenue, make
a profit, or grow the business.

Any valuation is difficult to assess

The valuation for the offering was established by the Company. Unlike listed companies that are independently valued
through market-driven stock prices, the valuation of private companies, especially startups, is difficult to assess, may not be
exact, and you may risk overpaying for your investment.

The transferability of the Securities you are buying is limited

You should be prepared to hold this investment for several years or longer. For the 12 months following your investment,
there will be restrictions on the securities you purchase. More importantly, there are a limited number of established
markets for the resale of these securities. As a result, if you decide to sell these securities in the future, you may not be able
to find, or may have difficulty finding, a buyer, and you may have to locate an interested buyer when you do seek to resell
your investment. The Company may be acquired by an existing player in the industry. However, that may never happen or it
may happen at a price that results in you losing money on this investment.

Your investment could be illiquid for a long time

You should be prepared to hold this investment for several years or longer. For the 12 months following your investment,
there will be restrictions on how you can resell the securities you receive. More importantly, there are limited established
markets for these securities. As a result, if you decide to sell these securities in the future, you may not be able to find a
buyer. The Company may be acquired by an existing player in the same or a similar industry. However, that may never
happen or it may happen at a price that results in you losing money on this investment.



The Company may undergo a future change that could affect your investment

The Company may change its business, management or advisory team, IP portfolio, location of its principal place of
business or production facilities, or other change which may result in adverse effects on your investment. Additionally, the
Company may alter its corporate structure through a merger, acquisition, consolidation, or other restructuring of its current
corporate entity structure. Should such a future change occur, it would be based on management's review and
determination that it is in the best interests of the Company.

Your information rights are limited with limited post-closing disclosures

The Company is required to disclose certain information about the Company, its business plan, and its anticipated use of
proceeds, among other things, in this offering. Early-stage companies may be able to provide only limited information
about their business plan and operations because it does not have fully developed operations or a long history to provide
more disclosure. The Company is also only obligated to file information annually regarding its business, including financial
statements. In contrast to publicly listed companies, investors will be entitled only to that post-offering information that is
required to be disclosed to them pursuant to applicable law or regulation, including Regulation CF. Such disclosure
generally requires only that the Company issue an annual report via a Form C-AR. Investors are generally not entitled to
interim updates or financial information.

We may not have enough capital as needed and may be required to raise more capital.

We anticipate needing access to credit in order to support our working capital requirements as we grow. It is a difficult
environment for obtaining credit on favorable terms. If we cannot obtain credit when we need it, we could be forced to raise
additional equity capital, modify our growth plans, or take some other action. Issuing more equity may require bringing on
additional investors. Securing these additional investors could require pricing our equity below its current price. If so, your
investment could lose value as a result of this additional dilution. In addition, even if the equity is not priced lower, your
ownership percentage would be decreased with the addition of more investors. If we are unable to find additional investors
willing to provide capital, then it is possible that we will choose to cease our sales activity. In that case, the only asset
remaining to generate a return on your investment could be our intellectual property. Even if we are not forced to cease our
sales activity, the unavailability of credit could result in the Company performing below expectations, which could
adversely impact the value of your investment.

Terms of subsequent financings may adversely impact your investment

We will likely need to engage in common equity, debt, or preferred stock financings in the future, which may reduce the
value of your investment in the Company. Interest on debt securities could increase costs and negatively impact operating
results. Preferred stock could be issued in series from time to time with such designation, rights, preferences, and
limitations as needed to raise capital. The terms of preferred stock could be more advantageous to those investors than to
the holders of common stock or other securities. In addition, if we need to raise more equity capital from the sale of
Common Stock, institutional or other investors may negotiate terms that are likely to be more favorable than the terms of
your investment, and possibly a lower purchase price per security.

Management's Discretion as to Use of Proceeds

Our success will be substantially dependent upon the discretion and judgment of our management team with respect to the
application and allocation of the proceeds of this offering. The Use of Proceeds described below is an estimate based on our
current business plan. We, however, may find it necessary or advisable to re-allocate portions of the net proceeds reserved
for one category to another, and we will have broad discretion in doing so.

Projections: Forward Looking Information

Any projections or forward-looking statements regarding our anticipated financial or operational performance are
hypothetical and are based on management’s best estimate of the probable results of our operations and may not have been
reviewed by our independent accountants. These projections are based on assumptions that management believes are
reasonable. Some assumptions invariably will not materialize due to unanticipated events and circumstances beyond
management's control. Therefore, actual results of operations will vary from such projections, and such variances may be
material. Any projected results cannot be guaranteed.

The amount raised in this offering may include investments from company insiders or immediate family members
Officers, directors, executives, and existing owners with a controlling stake in the Company (or their immediate family
members) may make investments in this offering. Any such investments will be included in the raised amount reflected on
the campaign page.

Developing new products and technologies entails significant risks and uncertainties

Competition can be intense in many markets, and a failure to keep up with competitors or anticipate shifts in market
dynamics can lead to revenue declines or market share losses. We are currently in the research and development stage and
have only manufactured a prototype for our product. Delays or cost overruns in the development of our product and failure
of the product to meet our performance estimates may be caused by, among other things, unanticipated technological
hurdles, difficulties in manufacturing, changes to design, and regulatory hurdles. Any of these events could materially and
adversely affect our operating performance and results of operations.

Supply Chain and Logistics Risks
The availability of raw materials, transportation costs, and supply chain disruptions can all impact the ability to



manufacture and distribute products or services, leading to lost revenue or increased costs. Products and services that are
not available when customers need them can lead to lost sales and damage to the brand's reputation.

Quality and Safety of our Product and Service

The quality of a product or service can vary depending on the manufacturer or provider. Poor quality can result in customer
dissatisfaction, returns, and lost revenue. Furthermore, products or services that are not safe can cause harm to customers
and result in liability for the manufacturer or provider. Safety issues can arise from design flaws, manufacturing defects, or
improper use.

Minority Holder; Securities with Voting Rights

The Common Stock that an investor is buying has voting rights attached to them. However, you will be part of the minority
shareholders of the Company and have agreed to appoint the Chief Executive Officer of the Company (the "CEQ"), or his or
her successor, as your voting proxy. You are trusting in management discretion in making good business decisions that will
grow your investments. Furthermore, in the event of a liquidation of our Company, you will only be paid out if there is any

cash remaining after all of the creditors of our Company have been paid out.

You are trusting that management will make the best decision for the company
You are trusting in management's discretion. You are buying securities as a minority holder, and therefore must trust the
management of the Company to make good business decisions that grow your investment.

This offering involves "rolling closings,” which may mean that earlier investors may not have the benefit of information that
later investors have.

Once we meet our target amount for this offering, we may request that StartEngine instruct the escrow agent to disburse
offering funds to us. At that point, investors whose subscription agreements have been accepted will become our investors.
All early-stage companies are subject to a number of risks and uncertainties, and it is not uncommon for material changes
to be made to the offering terms, or to companies’ businesses, plans, or prospects, sometimes with little or no notice. When
such changes happen during the course of an offering, we must file an amendment to our Form C with the SEC, and
investors whose subscriptions have not yet been accepted will have the right to withdraw their subscriptions and get their
money back. Investors whose subscriptions have already been accepted, however, will already be our investors and will have
no such right.

Non-accredited investors may not be eligible to participate in a future merger or acquisition of the Company and may lose a
portion of their investment

Investors should be aware that under Rule 145 under the Securities Act of 1933 if they invest in a company through
Regulation CrowdFunding and that company becomes involved in a merger or acquisition, there may be significant
regulatory implications. Under Rule 145, when a company plans to acquire another and offers its shares as part of the deal,
the transaction may be deemed an offer of securities to the target company's investors, because investors who can vote (or
for whom a proxy is voting on their behalf) are making an investment decision regarding the securities they would receive.
All investors, even those with non-voting shares, may have rights with respect to the merger depending on relevant state
laws. This means the acquirer's "offer” to the target's investors would require registration or an exemption from registration
(such as Reg.Dor Reg. CF), the burden of which can be substantial. As a result, non-accredited investors may have their
shares repurchased rather than receiving shares in the acquiring company or participating in the acquisition. This may
result in investors' shares being repurchased at a value determined by a third party, which may be at a lesser value than the
original purchase price. Investors should consider the possibility of a cash buyout in such circumstances, which may not be
commensurate with the long-term investment they anticipate.

We face significant market competition

We will compete with larger, established companies that currently have products on the market and/or various respective
product development programs. They may have much better financial means and marketing/sales, and human resources
than us. They may succeed in developing and marketing competing equivalent products earlier than us, or superior products
to those developed by us. There can be no assurance that competitors will not render our technology or products obsolete or
that the products developed by us will be preferred to any existing or newly developed technologies. It should further be
assumed that competition will intensify.

We are an early-stage company operating in a new and highly competitive industry

The Company operates in a relatively new industry with a lot of competition from both startups and established companies.
As other companies flood the market and reduce potential market share, Investors may be less willing to invest in a
company with a declining market share, which could make it more challenging to fund operations or pursue growth
opportunities in the future.

Intense Market Competition

The market in which the company operates may be highly competitive, with established players, emerging startups, and
potential future entrants. The presence of competitors can impact the company's ability to attract and retain customers,
gain market share, and generate sustainable revenue. Competitors with greater financial resources, brand recognition, or
established customer bases may have a competitive advantage, making it challenging for the company to differentiate itself
and achieve long-term success.



Vulnerability to Economic Conditions

Economic conditions, both globally and within specific markets, can significantly influence the success of early-stage
startups. Downturns or recessions may lead to reduced consumer spending, limited access to capital, and decreased demand
for the company’s products or services. Additionally, factors such as inflation, interest rates, and exchange rate fluctuations
can affect the cost of raw materials, operational expenses, and profitability, potentially impacting the company's ability to
operate.

Uncertain Regulatory Landscape

Due to the unestablished nature of the market the business operates within, the potential introduction of new laws or
industry-specific standards can impose additional costs and operational burdens on the company. Non-compliance or legal
disputes may result in fines, penalties, reputational damage, or even litigation, adversely affecting the company's financial
condition and ability to operate effectively.

We have existing patents that we might not be able to protect properly

One of the Company’s most valuable assets is its intellectual property. The Company’s owns trademarks, copyrights,
Internet domain names, and trade secrets. We believe one of the most valuable components of the Company is our
intellectual property portfolio. Due to the value, competitors may misappropriate or violate the rights owned by the
Company. The Company intends to continue to protect its intellectual property portfolio from such violations. It is
important to note that unforeseen costs associated with such practices may invade the capital of the Company.

Our trademarks, copyrights and other intellectual property could be unenforceable or ineffective

Intellectual property is a complex field of law in which few things are certain. Competitors may be able to design around our
intellectual property, find prior art to invalidate it, or render the patents unenforceable through some other mechanism. If
competitors are able to bypass our trademark and copyright protection without obtaining a sublicense, the Company’s value
will likely be materially and adversely impacted. This could also impair the Company's ability to compete in the
marketplace. Moreover, if our trademarks and copyrights are deemed unenforceable, the Company will almost certainly lose
any potential revenue it might be able to raise by entering into sublicenses. This would cut off a significant potential
revenue stream for the Company.

The cost of enforcing our trademarks and copyrights could prevent us from enforcing them

Trademark and copyright litigation has become extremely expensive. Even if we believe that a competitor is infringing on
one or more of our trademarks or copyrights, we might choose not to file suit because we lack the cash to successfully
prosecute a multi-year litigation with an uncertain outcome; or because we believe that the cost of enforcing our
trademark(s) or copyright(s) outweighs the value of winning the suit in light of the risks and consequences of losing it; or
for some other reason. Choosing not to enforce our trademark(s) or copyright(s) could have adverse consequences for the
Company, including undermining the credibility of our intellectual property, reducing our ability to enter into sublicenses,
and weakening our attempts to prevent competitors from entering the market. As a result, if we are unable to enforce our
trademark(s) or copyright(s) because of the cost of enforcement, your investment in the Company could be significantly and
adversely affected.

The loss of one or more of our key personnel, or our failure to attract and retain other highly qualified personnel in the
future, could harm our business

Our business depends on our ability to attract, retain, and develop highly skilled and qualified employees. As we grow, we
will need to continue to attract and hire additional employees in various areas, including sales, marketing, design,
development, operations, finance, legal, and human resources. However, we may face competition for qualified candidates,
and we cannot guarantee that we will be successful in recruiting or retaining suitable employees. Additionally, if we make
hiring mistakes or fail to develop and train our employees adequately, it could have a negative impact on our business,
financial condition, or operating results. We may also need to compete with other companies in our industry for highly
skilled and qualified employees. If we are unable to attract and retain the right talent, it may impact our ability to execute
our business plan successfully, which could adversely affect the value of your investment. Furthermore, the economic
environment may affect our ability to hire qualified candidates, and we cannot predict whether we will be able to find the
right employees when we need them. This would likely adversely impact the value of your investment.

Our ability to sell our product or service is dependent on outside government regulation which can be subject to change at
anytime

Our ability to sell our products is subject to various government regulations, including but not limited to, regulations
related to the manufacturing, labeling, distribution, and sale of our products. Changes in these regulations, or the
enactment of new regulations, could impact our ability to sell our products or increase our compliance costs. Furthermore,
the regulatory landscape is subject to regular change, and we may face challenges in adapting to such changes, which could
adversely affect our business, financial condition, or operating results. In addition to government regulations, we may also
be subject to other laws and regulations related to our products, including intellectual property laws, data privacy laws, and
consumer protection laws. Non-compliance with these laws and regulations could result in legal and financial liabilities,
reputational damage, and regulatory fines and penalties. It is also possible that changes in public perception or cultural
norms regarding our products may impact demand for our products, which could adversely affect our business and financial
performance, which may adversely affect your investment.



We rely on third parties to provide services essential to the success of our business

Our business relies on a variety of third-party vendors and service providers, including but not limited to manufacturers,
shippers, accountants, lawyers, public relations firms, advertisers, retailers, and distributors. Our ability to maintain high-
quality operations and services depends on these third-party vendors and service providers, and any failure or delay in their
performance could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and operating results. We may have
limited control over the actions of these third-party vendors and service providers, and they may be subject to their own
operational, financial, and reputational risks. We may also be subject to contractual or legal limitations in our ability to
terminate relationships with these vendors or service providers or seek legal recourse for their actions. Additionally, we may
face challenges in finding suitable replacements for these vendors and service providers, which could cause delays or
disruptions to our operations. The loss of key or other critical vendors and service providers could materially and adversely
affect our business, financial condition, and operating results, and as a result, your investment could be adversely impacted
by our reliance on these third-party vendors and service providers.

Economic and market conditions

The Company’s business may be affected by economic and market conditions, including changes in interest rates, inflation,
consumer demand, and competition, which could adversely affect the Company's business, financial condition, and
operating results.

Force majeure events

The Company's operations may be affected by force majeure events, such as natural disasters, pandemics, acts of terrorism,
war, or other unforeseeable events, which could disrupt the Company's business and operations and adversely affect its
financial condition and operating results.

Adverse publicity
The Company's business may be negatively impacted by adverse publicity, negative reviews, or social media campaigns that
could harm the Company's reputation, business, financial condition, and operating results.

Litigation

Mr. Stephen Willey, a director of the Issuer, was named in a civil lawsuit filed in 2021 by NextPlay Technologies in the U.S.
District Court for the Western District of Washington. The allegations relate to Mr. Willey's former board service with Axion
Ventures. A related proceeding in British Columbia, Canada—making overlapping allegations—was previously dismissed in
Mr. Willey’s favor. The court in that matter awarded special costs and concluded that the claims were not supported by the
evidence, lacked merit, and were brought for improper purposes. The U.S. lawsuit was stayed in 2022 by agreement of the
parties, and no action has been taken in the case since that time. In 2025, NextPlay Technologies entered Chapter 7
bankruptcy proceedings, which triggered an additional statutory stay of the case.

Failure to obtain FDA approval

Our products are intended for use by visually impaired and legally blind patients. As such, they are subject to regulation by
the U.S. FDA as Class I1I medical devices. We intend to pursue approval through the Premarket Approval (PMA) process,
which is time-consuming, costly, and requires substantial clinical and manufacturing evidence. There is no assurance that
the FDA will approve our product. A failure to obtain approval could prevent us from entering the U.S. market and could
materially impact our business and your investment.

Clinical trial failure or delay

We have completed a Phase I safety study and plan to begin a Phase II clinical trial in 2025. Clinical trials are inherently
uncertain and involve potential risks, including delays in patient enrollment, unanticipated adverse events, or failure to
meet regulatory expectations. Any such delays or setbacks could prevent or postpone our regulatory submission and reduce
the likelihood of commercialization, which could materially affect our future operations and investor returns.

Our contact lenses will require FDA clearance before they can be sold.

The smart contact lens component of our system is regulated by the U.S. Food and Drug Administration (FDA) and is subject
to a multi-step clearance process, including a 510(k) premarket notification for our base lens and a future Investigational
Device Exemption (IDE) submission for our advanced display-enabled lens. There is no guarantee that the FDA will grant
clearance, and any failure to do so could limit the availability of our full integrated vision system. However, our smart
glasses are not regulated as a medical device and may be sold independently of the lenses.

Delays in clinical trials may impact our timeline for regulatory submission and the commercial availability of our lens
system.

While we have completed human clinical testing on our base lens and are conducting additional studies to support future
FDA submissions, the display-enabled lens has not yet entered Phase Il trials. Any delay in completing these trials or
obtaining necessary FDA clearances could impact our ability to commercialize the contact lens component of our product.
However, these delays would not affect our ability to bring our smart glasses to market independently.

Convertible note conversion may dilute your ownership.

The Company has issued $930,000 in convertible promissory notes that may convert into Common Stock upon the Company
raising at least $1,000,000 in this offering. If converted, these notes could result in the issuance of additional shares at a
discount, diluting your investment and potentially impacting your proportional ownership and voting power. Because the



Company’s Regulation D convertible note offering remains open, it is possible that those notes could convert into equity
during this Regulation CF offering if the $1 million Qualified Equity Financing threshold is reached. This may impact the
total number of outstanding shares and increase dilution for investors in this offering.



Ownership and Capital Structure; Rights of the Securities

Ownership
The following table sets forth information regarding beneficial ownership of the company’s holders of 20% or more of any
class of voting securities as of the date of this Offering Statement filing.

Stockholder Name|[Number of Securities Owned|Type of Security Owned|Percentage
Stephen Willey 7,326,393 Common Stock 27.4%

The Company's Securities

The Company has authorized Common Stock, Series Seed Preferred Stock, Series A-1 Preferred Stock, Series A-2 Preferred
Stock, Series A-3 Preferred Stock, and Convertible Note. As part of the Regulation Crowdfunding raise, the Company will be
offering up to 1,666,666 of Common Stock.

Common Stock

The amount of security authorized is 50,000,000 with a total of 13,799,493 outstanding.
Voting Rights

One vote per share. Please see voting rights of securities sold in this offering below.
Material Rights

Voting Rights of Securities Sold in this Offering

Voting Proxy. Each Subscriber shall appoint the Chief Executive Officer of the Company (the "CEQ"), or his or her successor,
as the Subscriber's true and lawful proxy and attorney, with the power to act alone and with full power of substitution, to,
consistent with this instrument and on behalf of the Subscriber, (i) vote all Securities, (ii) give and receive notices and
communications, (iii) execute any instrument or document that the CEO determines is necessary or appropriate in the
exercise of its authority under this instrument, and (iv) take all actions necessary or appropriate in the judgment of the CEO
for the accomplishment of the foregoing. The proxy and power granted by the Subscriber pursuant to this Section are
coupled with an interest. Such proxy and power will be irrevocable. The proxy and power, so long as the Subscriber is an
individual, will survive the death, incompetency and disability of the Subscriber and, so long as the Subscriber is an entity,
will survive the merger or reorganization of the Subscriber or any other entity holding the Securities. However, the Proxy
will terminate upon the closing of a firm-commitment underwritten public offering pursuant to an effective registration
statement under the Securities Act of 1933 covering the offer and sale of Common Stock or the effectiveness of a
registration statement under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 covering the Common Stock.

Stockholders’ Agreement

As a condition of investment, all purchasers of Common Stock in this offering will be required to become parties to the
Company’s Amended and Restated Stockholders” Agreement. This agreement includes provisions requiring stockholders to
vote their shares in favor of designated director nominees, including two Officer Designees, one Common Designee, and
one Series Seed Designee. It also provides contractual rights to certain stockholders, such as rights of first offer on future
equity issuances in specified circumstances, and imposes voting obligations related to Board composition. These provisions
may limit a stockholder’s ability to independently influence governance and other corporate actions.

Dividends. Dividends as may be declared from time to time, pro rata with Preferred Stock on an as-converted basis.
Liquidation. A pro rata share of net assets upon liquidation after satisfaction of the Preferred Stock liquidation preference.
The total outstanding shares of Common Stock include issued RSAs.

The total amount outstanding includes 624,984 shares to be issued pursuant to outstanding warrants.

The total amount outstanding also includes 1,904,217 shares to be issued pursuant to stock options issued.

The total amount outstanding DOES NOT include 2,735,686 shares to be issued pursuant to stock options, reserved but
unissued.

Please see the Company’s Second Amended & Restated Certificate of Incorporation and Amended & Restated Stockholders’
Agreement, attached to the Offering Circular as Exhibit F, for further information.

Series Seed Preferred Stock

The amount of security authorized is 3,518,238 with a total of 3,518,238 outstanding.



Voting Rights
One vote per share.
Material Rights

Holders of Series Seed Preferred Stock have the right to convert their shares into Common Stock at any time on a 1:1 basis,
subject to adjustment for stock splits, dividends, and similar events. These shares also carry a liquidation preference equal
to the original purchase price per share (as defined in the Company’s certificate of incorporation), ranking pari passu with
other series of Preferred Stock. Dividends are non-cumulative and payable only if declared by the Board, in common with
holders of Common Stock on an as-converted basis.

Series A-1 Preferred Stock

The amount of security authorized is 5,000,000 with a total of 2,565,186 outstanding.
Voting Rights

One vote per share.
Material Rights

Holders have the right to convert their shares into Common Stock at the applicable conversion price (initially 1:1, subject to
adjustment). They are entitled to a liquidation preference equal to the original issue price per share. These shares
participate pari passu with other Preferred series. Anti-dilution protections may apply under certain circumstances.
Dividends are non-cumulative and payable only if and when declared.

Series A-2 Preferred Stock

The amount of security authorized is 1,610,514 with a total of 1,610,514 outstanding.
Voting Rights

One vote per share.
Material Rights

Convertible into Common Stock at a fixed ratio (initially 1:1). Carries a liquidation preference equal to the purchase price
per share, ranking pari passu with other Preferred series. Dividends are non-cumulative and payable if declared, alongside
Common on an as-converted basis.

Series A-3 Preferred Stock

The amount of security authorized is 1,123,787 with a total of 1,123,787 outstanding.
Voting Rights

One vote per share.
Material Rights

Convertible into Common Stock at an initial conversion rate of 1 share of Preferred to approximately 1.022 shares of
Common (subject to adjustment). Carries a liquidation preference equal to the original issue price per share. Participates
pari passu with other Preferred Stock. Non-cumulative dividends payable if and when declared.

Convertible Note
The security will convert into Common stock and the terms of the Convertible Note are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $930,000.00

Maturity Date: December 31, 2025

Interest Rate: 12.0%

Discount Rate: 30.0%

Valuation Cap: None

Conversion Trigger: The Notes are convertible under a Qualified Equity Financing of $1,000,000.

Material Rights

At maturity, the notes and accrued interest are payable in full upon a qualified equity financing event the principal and
accrued interest are automatically convertible to the Company’s common stock. The number of shares will be equal to the
quotient obtained by dividing (i) the outstanding principal and accrued interest by (ii) 20% or 30% of the price paid



compared to the price paid by investors in the Qualified Equity Financing. The 20% or 30% conversion discount is
determined upon if the note holder is a qualified early investor. Qualified Early Investor shall mean a subscriber, who either
(i) was a shareholder of the Company as of September 30, 2024 and has a note in the original principal amount of at least
twenty thousand dollars or (ii) has an original principal amount of at least thirty thousand dollars.

The Convertible Notes are automatically convertible, in the event Innovega consummates prior to the Maturity Date, an
equity financing pursuant to which it issues and sells shares of a series of its preferred or common stock of the Company
(the “New Stock™) with an aggregate sale price of not less than $1,000,000 (“Qualified Equity Financing”). Qualified Early
Investor “Qualified Early Investor “shall mean a Subscriber, who either (i) was a shareholder of the Company as of
September 30, 2024 and has a note in the original principal amount of at least twenty thousand dollars or (ii) has an original
principal amount of at least thirty thousand dollars.

Potential Conversion in this Offering

If the Company raises at least $1,000,000 in this Regulation Crowdfunding offering, the outstanding convertible notes
(including accrued interest) will automatically convert into Common Stock at a 20% or 30% discount, depending on investor
eligibility. The equity class issued will match that offered in this Reg CF raise, Common Stock, as determined by the
Company. Please see the Company’s Securities and Dilution sections of the offering circular for further information. Please
see the Risk Factors and Dilution sections of the offering circular for further information on how this may affect your
investment. In addition, the Company’s concurrent convertible note offering under Rule 506(c) of Regulation D remains
open, and proceeds from that offering will count toward the $1,000,000 Qualified Equity Financing threshold that could
trigger conversion during this Reg CF raise.

What it means to be a minority holder

As a minority holder of Common Stock of this offering, you have granted your votes by proxy to the CEO of the Company.
Even if you were to receive control of your voting rights, as a minority holder, you will have limited rights in regards to the
corporate actions of the Company, including additional issuances of securities, company repurchases of securities, a sale of
the Company or its significant assets, or company transactions with related parties. Further, investors in this offering may
have rights less than those of other investors, and will have limited influence on the corporate actions of the Company.

Dilution

Investors should understand the potential for dilution. The investor's stake in a company could be diluted due to the
Company issuing additional shares. In other words, when the Company issues more shares, the percentage of the Company
that you own will go down, even though the value of the Company may go up. You will own a smaller piece of a larger
company. This increase in the number of shares outstanding could result from a stock offering (such as an initial public
offering, another crowdfunding round, a venture capital round, or angel investment), employees exercising stock options,
by conversion of certain instruments (e.g. convertible bonds, preferred shares or warrants) into stock, or by the conversion
of convertible notes currently being offered by the Company under Regulation D, which may convert during this Regulation
CF raise if certain fundraising thresholds are met.. If the Company decides to issue more shares, an investor could
experience value dilution, with each share being worth less than before, and control dilution, with the total percentage an
investor owns being less than before. There may also be earnings dilution, with a reduction in the amount earned per share
(though this typically occurs only if the Company offers dividends, and most early-stage companies are unlikely to offer
dividends, preferring to invest any earnings into the Company).

In particular, the Company has $930,000 in outstanding convertible notes that may automatically convert into Common
Stock during this offering if the Company raises at least $1,000,000. These notes include a 20% or 30% discount compared to
the price paid by Reg CF investors. If converted, the resulting issuance of shares could dilute your ownership percentage and
voting power. Please see the Company’s Securities and Risk Factors sections of the offering circular for further information.

Transferability of securities

For a year, the securities can only be resold:
e [nanlPO;
e To the company;
e To an accredited investor; and

e To a member of the family of the purchaser or the equivalent, to a trust controlled by the purchaser, to a trust created
for the benefit of a member of the family of the purchaser or the equivalent, or in connection with the death or divorce
of the purchaser or other similar circumstance.

Recent Offerings of Securities



We have made the following issuances of securities within the last three years:

e Name: Series A-1 Preferred Stock
Type of security sold: Equity
Final amount sold: $6,645,600.00
Number of Securities Sold: 2,215,200
Use of proceeds: Clinical and regulatory expenses, research and development, general and administrative expenses,
business development
Date: September 30, 2022
Offering exemption relied upon: Regulation A+

e Name: Equity (Preferred Share plus Common Share Warrant)
Type of security sold: Equity
Final amount sold: $1,025,000.00
Number of Securities Sold: 1,049,958
Use of proceeds: Securities sold include 349,986 Preferred A-1 and 699,972 Common shares. Clinical and regulatory
expenses, research and development, general and administrative expenses, business development
Date: September 30, 2024
Offering exemption relied upon: 501(c) Reg D

e Type of security sold: Convertible Note
Final amount sold: $950,000.00
Use of proceeds: Research and development, general and administrative expenses
Date: June 25, 2025
Offering exemption relied upon: 506(c)

Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Financial Condition

You should read the following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of our operations together with
our financial statements and related notes appearing at the end of this Offering Memorandum. This discussion contains
forward-looking statements reflecting our current expectations that involve risks and uncertainties. Actual results and the
timing of events may differ materially from those contained in these forward-looking statements due to a number of factors,
including those discussed in the section entitled “Risk Factors” and elsewhere in this Offering Memorandum.

Results of Operations

Circumstances which led to the performance of financial statements:

The revenue in 2023 represented fees that related to a license agreement with Ocular Surface Innovation that expired in
2023.

Cost of Sales

Cost of Sales for the year ended December 31, 2024 was SO compared to $O for the year ended December 31, 2023.

Gross Margins

Gross margins for the year ended December 31, 2024 were $0. compared to $50,000 for the year ended December 31, 2023.
See above for license agreement comment in 2023,

Expenses

Expenses for the year ended December 31, 2024 $1,975,134 compared to $1,896,506 for the year ended December 31, 2023.

As a result of the above, the Company generated a net loss of $2,727,501 for the year ended December 31, 2024, compared
to a net loss of $2,184,930 for the year ended December 31, 2023. The 30% increase in net loss resulted from a 117% increase
in interest expense due to a series of stockholder loans during 2024 and a 175% increase in a non-cash stock based
compensation expense, offset by lower costs in personnel, consulting, legal and clinical/regulatory fees.

Historical results and cash flows:

The Company is currently in the research and development, commercialization, and pre-production / pre-revenue stage of



growth. We are of the opinion that the historical cash flows will not be indicative of the revenue and cash flows expected for
the future because the Company is transitioning from pre-production to post-production phase of growth. Past cash was
primarily generated through equity investments. Our goal is to secure future revenues from sale of licenses, products or
services.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

What capital resources are currently available to the Company? (Cash on hand, existing lines of credit, shareholder loans,
etc...)

As of April 30, 2025, the Company has capital resources available in the form of $145,290 cash on hand.

How do the funds of this campaign factor into your financial resources? (Are these funds critical to your company
operations? Or do you have other funds or capital resources available?)

We believe the funds of this campaign are critical to our company operations. These funds are required to support ongoing
operations and future growth.

Are the funds from this campaign necessary to the viability of the company? (Of the total funds that your company has, how
much of that will be made up of funds raised from the crowdfunding campaign?)

We believe the funds from this campaign are not necessary to the viability of the Company, but they are an important
aspect of the Company’s capital formation plan. Of the total funds that our Company has, 97% will be made up of funds
raised from the crowdfunding campaign, if it raises its maximum funding goal.

How long will you be able to operate the company if you raise your minimum? What expenses is this estimate based on?

If the Company raises the minimum funding goal of $10,000, we anticipate we will be able to continue operating. In our
history, we have successfully raised funds via equity fundraising and debt instruments. We plan to continue doing so. This is
based on a current monthly burn rate of $100,000 for expenses related to Research and Development and General
Administrative expenses.

How long will you be able to operate the company if you raise your maximum funding goal?

If the Company raises the maximum funding goal, we anticipate the Company will be able to operate for 12 months. This is
based on a projected monthly burn rate of $300,000 for expenses related to Research and Development and General
Administrative expenses, Marketing/advertising, contract manufacturing/development costs for a contemplated launch
product, reduction in Accounts Payable and a partial repayment of Shareholder and Related party notes.

Are there any additional future sources of capital available to your company? (Required capital contributions, lines of credit,
contemplated future capital raises, etc...)

The Company has contemplated additional future sources of capital, including for example, Regulation A.

Indebtedness

e Creditor: Various third-party investors
Amount Owed: $1,462,500.00
Interest Rate: 12.0%
Maturity Date: December 31, 2025
Issued between 2022 and 2024. In connection with the notes, the Company issued 225,000 detachable warrants with a
$0.001 per share exercise price and 5-year expiration terms. A warrant expense of $218,250 was recognized in 2024
due to the immaterial exercise price.

e (Creditor: Various third-party investors (Convertible Notes)
Amount Owed: $950,000.00
Interest Rate: 12.0%
Maturity Date: May 29, 2026
Issued from Q4 2024 to May 29, 2025. Notes are automatically convertible upon a Qualified Equity Financing of at
least $1,000,000. Conversion occurs at a 20% or 30% discount to the financing price depending on whether the holder
is a Qualified Early Investor. Qualified Early Investors include (i) shareholders as of September 30, 2024 with notes =



$20,000, or (ii) non-shareholders with notes = $30,000. Maturity is 12 months from each note's issuance date.

Related Party Transactions

e Name of Person: Steve Willey
Relationship to Company: Chief Executive Officer
Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: Six promissory notes totaling $275,000; accrued interest of $38,696
Material Terms: Notes issued as follows — $100,000 in 2020, $100,000 across two notes in 2021, and $75,000 across
three notes in 2024. All notes carry an annual interest rate of 12%. Maturity dates are August 31, 2021 (two notes),
September 30, 2022, May 31, 2024, January 31, 2025, and March 31, 2025. The lender has not requested repayment.

e Name of Person: Board member
Relationship to Company: Member of the Company’s Board of Directors
Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: Three promissory notes totaling $45,000; accrued interest of $2,875
Material Terms: Notes issued in 2024 with an annual interest rate of 12%. Maturity dates are February 28, 2024, May
31, 2024, and March 31, 2025. The lender has not requested repayment.

e Name of Person: CEO and former Chief Clinical and Regulatory Officer (CCO)
Relationship to Company: Executive management — CEO and former CCO
Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: $1,367,729 in deferred compensation
Material Terms: Deferred compensation is recorded as a long-term liability as of December 31, 2024, since the
Company does not expect to pay any of the deferred amounts in the following twelve months.

Valuation

Pre-Money Valuation: $67,851,654.00
Valuation Details:
This pre-money valuation was calculated internally by the Company without the use of any formal third-party evaluation.

The pre-money valuation has been calculated on a fully diluted basis. In making this calculation, we have assumed: (i) all
preferred stock is converted to common stock; (ii) all outstanding options and warrants are exercised; and (iii) 2,735,686
Common shares reserved for future issuance under a stock plan are NOT included.

The pre-money valuation does not take into account any convertible securities currently outstanding. The Company
currently has $930,000 in Convertible Promissory Notes outstanding. Please refer to the Company Securities section of the
Offering Memorandum for further details regarding current outstanding convertible securities which may affect your
ownership in the future.

Use of Proceeds

If we raise the Target Offering Amount of $9,999.00 we plan to use these proceeds as follows:

e StartEngine Platform Fees
7.5%

e StartEngine Service Fees
92.5%
Fees for certain creative design, legal, marketing, technical, and administrative support services provided by
StartEngine, of which the final amount may vary.

If we raise the over allotment amount of $4,999,998.00, we plan to use these proceeds as follows:

e StartEngine Platform Fees
7.5%

e Research & Development
25.0%
Supports continued innovation, including further product development, software enhancements, and Al integration
for vision assistance.

e Working Capital
27.5%
Provides flexibility for operational expenses, hiring key personnel, and sustaining business operations during



commercialization.

e Sales & Marketing
10.0%
Corporate marketing activities

o G&A
25.0%
Usual general and administration expenses plus one-time expenses relating to raising new funds based on the planned
investment campaign

e (linical testing, Regulatory consulting
5.0%

Supports costs associated with FDA approvals, clinical trials, and compliance with global regulatory standards.

The Company may change the intended use of proceeds if our officers believe it is in the best interests of the company.

Regulatory Information

Disqualification

No disqualifying event has been recorded in respect to the company or its officers or directors.
Compliance Failure

The company has not previously failed to comply with the requirements of Regulation Crowdfunding.
Ongoing Reporting

The Company will file a report electronically with the SEC annually and post the report on its website no later than April 30
(120 days after Fiscal Year End). Once posted, the annual report may be found on the Company’s website at
https://innovega.io/ (https://innovega.io/news/).

The Company must continue to comply with the ongoing reporting requirements until:
(1) it is required to file reports under Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Exchange Act;

(2) it has filed at least one (1) annual report pursuant to Regulation Crowdfunding and has fewer than three hundred (300)
holders of record and has total assets that do not exceed $10,000,000;

(3) it has filed at least three (3) annual reports pursuant to Regulation Crowdfunding;

(4) it or another party repurchases all of the securities issued in reliance on Section 4(a)(6) of the Securities Act, including
any payment in full of debt securities or any complete redemption of redeemable securities; or

(5) it liquidates or dissolves its business in accordance with state law.
Updates
Updates on the status of this Offering may be found at: www.startengine.com/innovega-inc

Investing Process

See Exhibit E to the Offering Statement of which this Offering Memorandum forms a part.



EXHIBIT B TO FORM C
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REVIEW OR AUDIT (AS APPLICABLE) FOR Innovega Inc.

[See attached|



REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Innovega, Inc.

Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of Innovega, Inc. (collectively the “Company™) as of December
31, 2024, the related statements of operations, stockholders” deficit, and cash flows for the year then ended, and
the related notes (collectively referred to as the “financial statements™). In our opinion, the financial statements
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2024, and the
results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Going Concern

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming the Company will continue as a going
concern. As discussed in Note | to the financial statements, the Company’s net losses, cash flows used in
operations and the lack of revenue generating activities, raise substantial doubt about its ability to continue as a
going concern. Management’s plans in regard to these matters are also described in Note 1. The financial
statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.

Basis for Opinion

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on the Company’s financial statements based on our audit. We are a public accounting firm registered
with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (“PCAOB”) and are required to be
independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable
rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to
perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. As part of our audit, we are required to obtain an
understanding of internal control over financial reporting but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.

Our audit included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audit
also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

/s/ dbbmckennon olééméeq e

We have served as the Company's auditor since 2025.
PCAOB #3501

San Diego, California

May 23, 2025



REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Innovega, Inc.
Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of Innovega, Inc. (collectively the “Company™) as of December 31,
2024, the related statements of operations, stockholders’ deficit, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related
notes (collectively referred to as the “financial statements™). In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in
all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2024, and the results of its operations
and its cash flows for the year then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Going Concern

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming the Company will continue as a going concern.
As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the Company’s net losses, cash flows used in operations and the
lack of revenue generating activities, raise substantial doubt about its ability to continue as a going concern.
Management’s plans in regard to these matters are also described in Note 1. The financial statements do not include
any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.

Basis for Opinion

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on the Company’s financial statements based on our audit. We are a public accounting firm registered with
the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (“PCAOB”) and are required to be independent
with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and
regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform,
an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. As part of our audit, we are required to obtain an understanding
of internal control over financial reporting but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.

Our audit included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audit also
included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

/s/ dbbmckennon

We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2025.
PCAOB #3501

San Diego, California

May 29, 2025




REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Innovega, Inc.
Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of Innovega, Inc. (“the Company™) as of December 31, 2023, and
the related statements of operations, shareholders’ equity (deficit), and cash flows for the vear ended December 31,
2023, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the financial statements). In our opinion, the financial statements
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2023 and the results
of its operations and its cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2023, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Going Concern

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going
concern. As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the Company has had limited revenue and continued
accumulated losses. These factors, among others, raise substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern. Management's plans in regard to these matters are also described in Note 1. The financial statements
do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.

Basis for Opinion

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on the Company’s financial statements based on our audit. We are a public accounting firm registered with
the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB) and are required to be independent with
respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of
the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB and in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to
error or fraud. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control
over financial reporting. As part of our audit, we are required to obtain an understanding of internal control over
financial reporting, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.

Our audit included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audit also
included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

Critical Audit Matters

Critical audit matters are matters arising from the current period audit of the financial statements that were
communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that (1) relate to accounts or disclosures
that are material to the financial statements and (2) involved our especially challenging, subjective, or complex
judgments. We determined that there were no critical audit matters.

Fruci & Associates Il, PLLC — PCAOB ID #05525
We served as the Company’s auditor from 2020 to 2025.

Spokane, Washington
November 20, 2024



Innovega, Inc.
Balance Sheets

As of As of
December 31 December 31
2024 2023
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 122255 $ 89,859
Other current assets 4,950 12 515
Total current assets 127,205 102,374
Property and equipment, net 183,478 266,389
Intangible assets, net 1,228,466 1,122,828
Right of use-operating 300,818 341,018
Other assets 15,935 120,801
Total assets $ 1,855902 $ 1,953,410
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’® DEFICIT
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 747352 $ 676,092
Accrued expenses 136,052 107,397
Accrued interest, related parties 56,571 12,099
Accrued interest 404,568 87,846
Notes payable, current 1,462,500 625,000
Notes payable, related party notes payable, current 320,000 200,000
Convertible notes payable, net of discount of $88,943 211,057
Right-of-use liability - operating 88,014 100,884
Derivative liability 90,000 -
Total current liabilities 3,516,114 1,809,318
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Accrued deferred wages and compensation time 1,367,729 1,349,104
Notes payable, related party notes payable, net of current - 537,500
Right-of-use liability - operating, net of current 120,148 260,000
Total liabilities 5,003,991 3,955,922

COMMITMENTS & CONTINGENCIES
STOCKHOLDERS® DEFICIT
Series Seed Preferred Stock, $0.0001 par value, 3,518,238
authorized and outstanding at December 31, 2024, and December
31, 2023 352 352
Series A-1 to A-3 Preferred Stock, $0.0001 par value, 7,734,301
authorized and 5,299,487 outstanding at December 31, 2024, and
7,734,301 authorized and 5,066,163 outstanding at December 31,
2023 530 507
Common Stock, $0.0001 par value, 50,000,000 authorized and
11,403,209 outstanding at December 31, 2024, 50,000,000

authorized and 10,555,304 outstanding at December 31, 2023 1,140 1,055

Additional paid-in capital 18,962,221 17,380,405

Accumulated deficit (22,112,332) (19,384,831)
Total stockholders’ deficit (3,148,089) (2,002,512)
Total liabilities, and stockholders’ deficit $ 1855902 $ 1,953,410

* See accompanying notes to financial statements



Innovega, Inc.
Statements of Operations

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31 December 31
2024 2023

REVENUE $ 50,000

Cost of goods sold - .

Gross profit - 50,000

OPERATING EXPENSES

Research and development 948,121 797,774

Sales and marketing 98,285 44,560

General and administrative expenses 928,728 1,054,172

Operating loss (1,975,134) (1,846,506)

Interest income 2 9,332
Other income 2,927 -
Interest expense (755,296) (347,756)
LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAXES (2,727,501) (2,184,930)
INCOME TAXES - -
NET LOSS $ 2,727,501) $ 2,184,930)
Weighted average vested common shares outstanding:

Basic 11,572,222 10,501,636

Diluted 11,572,222 10,501,636
Net loss per common share

Basic $ (0.24) $ (0.21)

Diluted 3 (0.249) $ (0.21)

* See accompanying notes to financial statements



Innovega, Inc.
Statements of Stockholders’ Deficit
For the Years Ended December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2024

Additional Total
Preferred Shares Common Shares Paid-in  Accumulated Stockholders’
Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Deficit Deficit
Balance at December 31,
2022 8,467,739 $ 847 10,447968 $ 1,044 $16,794,480 $ (17,199,901)$  (403,530)
Preferred, Series A 74,997 8 - - 233,553 - 233,561
Preferred, Series A
(issued in note
conversion) 41,665 4 124,986 - 124,990
Stock compensation
expense - - - - 226,296 - 226,296
Issuance of Warrant - - . - 28 - 28
Exercise of warrants - - 107,336 11 1,062 - 1,073
Net loss - - - - - (2,184,930) (2,184,930)
Balance at December 31,
2023 8,584,401 859 10,555,304 $ 1,055 $17,380,405 $ (19,384,831)$ (2,002,512)

Proceeds from sale of
preferred stock and

warrants, net 233,324 23 - - 699,977 - 700,000

Stock compensation

expense - - . - 612,174 - 612,174

Common stock issued to

landlord - - 50,000 5 48,495 - 48,500

Vesting of RSA’s - - 497,917 50 (50) - -

Issuance of warrants for

debt issuance costs - - - - 218,250 - 218,250

Exercise of warrants - - 299,988 30 2,970 - 3,000

Net loss - - - . - (2,727,501) (2,727,501)
Balance at December 31,

2024 8,817,725 $ 882 11,403,209 $ 1,140 $18,962,221 $ 522,112,332) $ 53,148,089)

* See accompanying notes to financial statements



Innovega, Inc.
Statements of Cash Flows

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net loss

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating

activities:

Stock Based Compensation
Depreciation and Amortization
Impairment of Intangible Assets

Amortization of Debt Discount and Additional Interest

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Other current assets
Other assets
Right-of-use asset and liability
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Accrued interest
Accrued interest, related parties
Accrued and deferred wages
Net cash used in operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of fixed assets
Purchase of intangible assets

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from issuance of notes payable

Proceeds from issuance of notes payable, related parties
Proceeds from issuance of convertible notes payable
Proceeds from sale of preferred stock and warrants, net
Proceeds from sale of common stock

Proceeds from exercise of warrants

Net cash provided by financing activities

Change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash paid for interest

Cash paid for income taxes

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing and financing

activities:
Issuance of shares in lease modification
Warrants issued with notes

Derivative liability from conversion feature of convertible notes

* See accompanying notes to financial statements

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31,
2024 2023
$ (2,727,501) $ (2,184,930)

612,174 226,296

156,732 146,299

3.865 -

382,307 B

7.565 39,205

104,866 400,140

(64,022) 215

71,264 307,798
28,650 (319,994)

44 472 -

316,722 -

18,625 68,954
(1,044,281) (1,316,017)
— (24,584)
(183,323) (343,949)
(183,323) (368,533)

150,000 425,000

120,000 -

287,000 -

700,000 233,561

- 1,101

3,000 -

1,260,000 659,662

32,396 (1,024,888)

89,859 1,114,747

$ 122,255 89,859
$ - 113,072
$ - -
$ 48,500 -
3 218,250 -
$ 90,000 -




Innovega, Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements
As of and For the Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

Note 1 — Organization and Basis of Presentation

Organization — Innovega, Inc. (the Company) was incorporated in the state of Delaware. The Company designs and
develops contact lenses and display eyewear for virtual reality and augmented reality applications for the leisure and
professional markets.

Basis of presentation — The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP) and reflect all adjustments that, in the
opinion of the Company’s management, are necessary for a fair presentation of the financial position and results of
operations for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023.

Prior Period Reclassification - Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year.

Certain risks and uncertainties — The Company operates in a highly regulated environment. The Company’s
business also involves inherent risks, which include, among others, dependence on key personnel, reliance on single
source vendors, availability of raw materials, and patentability of the Company’s products under development and
liquidity constraints. Any of the technologies covering the Company’s existing products under development could
become obsolete or diminished in value by discoveries and developments of other organizations. The Company has
not yet commenced principal operations. There is a risk that the Company does not successfully secure sufficient
funding or assets required to commence principal operations.

Going Concern - The Company’s financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, which contemplates the
realization of assets and the satisfaction of obligations in the normal course of business. However, the Company has
generated minimal revenues to date and has accumulated losses to date. The Company does not currently have any
revenue generating operations. These conditions, among others, raise substantial doubt about the ability of the
Company to continue as a going concern. From inception through December 31, 2024, the Company has financed its
operations through debt and equity financings, as it has not generated any revenues from product sales to date. It has
incurred losses since inception, has an accumulated deficit of $22,112,332 at December 31, 2024, and will require
additional capital through the issuance of debt or equity securities to finance the continued development of the
business.

In view of these matters, continuation as a going concern is dependent upon continued operations of the Company,
which in turn is dependent upon the Company’s ability to meet its financial requirements, raise additional capital, and
the success of its future operations. The financial statements do not include any adjustments to the amount and
classification of assets and liabilities that may be necessary should the Company not continue as a going concern.

Management plans to fund operations of the Company through convertible notes, advances from existing shareholders,
a regulation CF offering and an initial public offering until such a time as a business combination or other profitable
investment may be achieved. There are no written agreements in place for such funding or issuance of securities and
there can be no assurance that such will be available in the future. Management believes that this plan provides an
opportunity for the Company to continue as a going concern.



Innovega, Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements
As of and For the Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Use of estimates — The preparation of financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during
the reporting period. Significant estimates relate to the valuation of stock-based compensation expense, and
recoverability of intangible assets. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Fair value of financial instruments — The Company’s financial instruments consist of cash, cash equivalents,
accounts payable and deferred offering costs. The fair value of the Company’s financial instruments approximates
their recorded values due to the short-term maturities of these financial instruments.

The Company establishes the fair value of its assets and liabilities using the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
Valuation techniques used to measure fair value must maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of
unobservable inputs. The current accounting guidance establishes a three-tier fair value hierarchy, which prioritizes
the inputs used in measuring fair value as follows:

Level 1 - Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. This includes all cash and cash
equivalents, accounts payable, notes payable and other liabilities. The Company believes that the amounts
on the Company’s balance sheet reasonably reflect the fair market value of all assets and liabilities.

Level 2 - Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets or inputs that are observable.

Level 3 - Inputs that are unobservable. This includes the valuation of the Company’s restricted stock awards
as discussed in Note 7, stock options issued to both employees and non-employees as discussed in Note 8,
and common stock and warrants issued as discussed in Note 10. The Company also has 624,984 common
warrants outstanding as of December 31, 2024. All were issued at $0.001 exercise price.

Cash and cash equivalents — Cash and cash equivalents include highly liquid investments with an original maturity
of three months or less on the date of purchase.

Concentration of credit risk — Financial instruments that potentially expose the Company to concentrations of credit
risk consist principally of cash and cash equivalents, which are held with financial institutions in amounts that may
exceed federally insured limits. The Company has not experienced any losses on its deposits of cash and cash
equivalents since inception.



Innovega, Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements
As of and For the Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

In March 2023, the Company moved the majority of its cash from Silicon Valley Bank (SVB) to Wells Fargo.

Property and equipment, net — Property and equipment are stated at cost, net of depreciation. Depreciation is
calculated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Laboratory equipment is
depreciated over a five-year life, computer equipment is depreciated over a three to five-year life, and furniture and
fixtures are depreciated over a seven-year life. Leasehold improvements are stated at cost, net of amortization and
amortized using the straight-line method over the remaining lease term.

Intangible assets, net — Intangible are stated at cost, net of amortization. It is the Company’s policy to capitalize
patent filing and prosecution fees for patents in which they believe they will receive an economic benefit. Intangible
assets consist primarily of patent filing and prosecution fees (Note 4). Intangible assets are amortized using the
straight-line method over their useful lives of up to 20 years.

Impairment of long-lived assets — The Company reviews the carrying value of long-lived assets used in operations
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets might not be recoverable.
Factors that would necessitate an impairment assessment include a significant adverse change in the extent or manner
in which an asset is used, a significant adverse change in legal factors or the business climate that could affect the
value of the asset, or a significant decline in the observable market value of an asset, among others.

For the year ended December 31, 2024, the Company wrote down the value of intangible assets related to a certain
patent recognizing a loss of $3,865.

Research and development costs — All research and development costs are charged to expense as incurred. Research
and development costs primarily consist of salaries and benefits of scientific and engineering staff, office expenses
for research facilities, research supplies, materials, consultants, stock-based compensation and amortization of
intangible assets.

The majority of historical costs are associated with contact lens development. When costs are incurred to develop
deliverables to meet terms of customer contracts, expenses are captured in appropriate detail to ensure proper
assignment to financial accounts. Financial records reflect a level of detail that indicates project profitability and how
money is expended. For internal, non-customer projects, expenses are captured under expense accounts that provide
transparency to key cost centers of the research and development department.

Revenue recognition — The Company has historically derived its revenue primarily from contracts.
The Company recognizes revenue when all of the following conditions have been satisfied:

There is persuasive evidence of an arrangement

The service has been or is being provided to the customer

The collection of the related fees is reasonably assured
The amount of the related fees to be paid by the customer is fixed and determinable



Innovega, Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements
As of and For the Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

The Company had revenue for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 of $0 and $50,000, respectively, resulting
from an agreement relating to product and channel development of the low-vision and blind product level solution.
This agreement was in force until February 2023 when it was terminated. The licensee requested product design
assistance and agreed to reimburse Innovega for this effort. At the start of each quarter and based on forecast effort by
Innovega, the licensee agreed to a fixed monthly fee. These fees were treated as Innovega revenue and costs associated
with these efforts were captured as Innovega’s cost of revenue. We entered into this agreement with a leader in the
supply of devices for the visually impaired, including legally blind patients. Included in this agreement was the
obligation to compensate us for consulting work performed by members of our team. The Company plans to continue
monetizing our intellectual property by licensing and other fee-based arrangements.

Sales and advertising expense — The Company expenses advertising costs as they are incurred. Advertising expenses
for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 was approximately $5,177 and $0, respectively.

Operating Leases- Operating lease assets and liabilities are recognized for leases with lease terms greater than 12
months based on the present value of the future lease payments over the lease term at the commencement date.
Operating leases are included on the balance sheet. Our lease terms may include options to extend or terminate the
lease when it is reasonably certain that we will exercise such option. We account for substantially all lease and related
non-lease components together as a single lease component. Operating lease expense is recognized on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Lease payments - Management has elected to separate non-lease components. Accordingly, CAM and taxes will be
charged to expense in the year incurred.

Income taxes — The Company records deferred tax assets and liabilities resulting from temporary and permanent
differences between the tax basis of assets and liabilities, and their reported amounts in the financial statements that
will result in taxable deductions or income in future years. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using
enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled.
The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in the year of change. A valuation
allowance is established when necessary to reduce deferred income tax assets to the amount expected to be realized.

Stock-based compensation — Compensation costs related to equity instruments, including stock options and restricted
stock awards, granted are generally valued at the grant-date fair value of the awards and recognized over the vesting
period of the instrument. Additionally, the Company accounts for forfeitures as they occur. No related tax benefits of
the stock-based compensation costs have been recognized since the Company’s inception.

For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company recognized $612,174 and $226,296, respectively, in
stock-based compensation expense associated with equity awards granted to employees, directors, or officers of the
Company or to third-party consultants.



Innovega, Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements
As of and For the Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

Equity instruments awarded to non-employees as the underlying awards vest, unless the instruments are fully vested,
immediately exercisable, and non-forfeitable on the date of grant.

The Company generally grants stock options to purchase common stock with exercise prices equal to the value of the
underlying stock, as determined by the Board of Directors on the date the equity award was granted. The Board of
Directors determines the value of the underlying stock by considering a number of factors, including third party
valuation, historical and projected financial results, the risks the Company faced at the time, the preferences of the
Company’s preferred stockholders, and the lack of liquidity of the Company’s common stock. During the year ended
December 31, 2024, the Company sold unit offerings consisting of Series A-1 Preferred Stock and pre-funded
Common Stock warrants at a value of $1.10 and $.97 per share respectively.

The fair value of restricted stock awards granted to employees and non-employees during the year ended December
31, 2024 was estimated on the date of grant using the $0.97 per share.

The fair value of options granted to employees and non-employees during the year ended December 31, 2023 was
estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes method with the following assumptions:

2023
Expected term 7 years
Average risk-free interest rate 3.00%
Volatility 67%
Dividend vield 0%
Stock Price $ 0.0011t00.83
Exercise Price $ 0.0011t00.83

The Company estimates the term of the award for employees using the simplified method. For non-employees, the
Company uses the contractual term, which is generally 10 years, as the expected term. As the Company does not have
a public trading history for its common shares, the expected volatility incorporates historical volatility of similar
entities whose share prices are publicly available. The risk-free interest rate is based upon U.S. Treasury securities
with remaining terms similar to the expected term of the share-based awards. The Company issues shares upon option
exercise.

In accounting for stock options with performance conditions, the Company assesses the probability that performance
conditions will be achieved and, if probable, compensation cost is accrued and recognized ratably over the estimated
service period to achieve the performance conditions. If the Company assesses that it is not probable the performance
conditions will be achieved, no compensation cost is recognized.

Earnings per share attributable to common stockholders - Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing net
income attributable to common shareholders by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during
the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023. Diluted net income per share attributable to common shareholders is
computed by dividing net income by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during the years
ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and potentially dilutive instruments, including stock options, restricted stock
awards, preferred stock, convertible notes, except in cases where the effect of the common stock equivalent would be
anti-dilutive.



Innovega, Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements
As of and For the Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

All potentially dilutive shares are considered anti-dilutive for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 due to the
Company’s net loss.

The potential dilutive effects of converting all outstanding instruments are outlined below.

2024 2023
Preferred shares 8,817,725 8, 584,401
Stock options 1,904,217 3,670,914
Convertible notes 155,579 -
Unvested restricted stock awards 277,083 -

Convertible notes and convertible preferred stock

When the Company issues convertible debt or convertible preferred stock, it evaluates the balance sheet classification
to determine whether the instrument should be classified either as debt or equity, and whether the conversion feature
should be accounted for separately from the host instrument. A conversion feature of a convertible debt instrument or
certain convertible preferred stock would be separated from the convertible instrument and classified as a derivative
liability if the conversion feature, were it a standalone instrument, meets the definition of an “embedded derivative™
in ASC 815, Derivatives and Hedging. Generally, characteristics that require derivative treatment include, among
others, when the conversion feature is not indexed to the Company’s equity, as defined in ASC 815-40, or when it
must be settled either in cash or by issuing stock that is readily convertible to cash. When a conversion feature meets
the definition of an embedded derivative, it would be separated from the host instrument

Recent accounting pronouncements

Management does not believe that any recently issued, but not yet effective, authoritative guidance, if currently
adopted, would have a material impact on the Company’s financial statement presentation or disclosures.



Innovega, Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements
As of and For the Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023
Note 3 — Property and equipment, Net

Property and equipment consist of the following at December 31, 2024 and 2023:

2024 2023

Computer Equipment and Software $ 87934 $ 121,202
Laboratory Equipment 358,382 520,767
Office Equipment 15,406 15,406
Furniture and Fixtures 36,800 39,196
Leasehold Improvements 46,056 46,056
Less accumulated depreciation (361,100) (476,238)

$ 183478 $ 266,389

Depreciation expense related to property and equipment was $82,912 and $74,910 for the years ended December 31,
2024 and 2023, respectively.

Note 4 — Intangible Assets, Net

Intangible assets consist of the following at December 31, 2024 and 2023:

2023 Additions Disposals 2024
Capitalized patent filing fees $ 1,458,759 188,163 (15,461) 1,631,461
Less accumulated amortization (335,931) (78,660) 11,596 (402,995)

$ 1122828 $ 109503 $ (3,865) $ 1,228,466

The Company has determined the patent filing fees to have an original useful life of 20 years based upon the estimated
period the Company will obtain future economic benefit from the related patents. The patent filing fees are amortized
over the estimated life of the patent using the straight-line method. Amortization expense of $78,660 for the year
ended December 31, 2024 and $62,297 for the year ended December 31 2023.

Estimated amortization expense related to intangible assets for the years ending December 31 are as follows:

2025 $ 83,254
2026 83,254
2027 83,254
2028 83,254
2029 83,254
Thereafter 812,196

$ 1,228,466



Innovega, Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements
As of and For the Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

Note 5 — Notes Payable

Between 2022 and 2024, the Company entered into a series of promissory note agreements (the “Notes™) with various
third-party investors. The Notes were issued with an aggregate principal amount totaling $1,462,500 and have stated
maturity dates ranging from September 30, 2024 through December 31 2025. The Notes bear stated interest rates
ranging from 12% to 18% per annum and include provisions for default interest at a rate of 24% per annum. As of the
date of the financial statements issuance all nine notes have amended maturity dates of December 31, 2025.

In connection with the issuance of the Notes, the Company issued detachable warrants to purchase shares of its
common stock. The warrants were issued with exercise prices of $0.001 per share and with expiration terms of 5 years
from the respective issuance dates. 225,000 warrants were issued in connection with various notes. The Company
recognized a value of $218,250 in 2024 which was based on an estimated fair market value of the Company’s common
stock due to the immaterial exercise price.

The issuance of the Notes and warrants was evaluated under ASC 470-20 and ASC 815. The Company allocated the
proceeds from each issuance to the warrants first as due to the insignificant exercise price it was deemed in tandem to
a share of common stock at the time of issuance creating a discount of $218,250. Additionally, some of the Notes
include a premium repayment between 50% and 100% which created an additional discount of $262,500 This discount
is being accreted over the respective terms of the Notes using the straight line method.

As of December 31, 2024, the unamortized balance of the debt discount was $0, and the net carrying value of the
Notes was $1,462,500. Interest expense related to the amortization of the discount for the year ended December 31,
2024 was $368,250.

As of December 31, 2024, the Company had six notes from the CEO totaling $275,000: one issued in 2020 for
$100,000, two in 2021 for $100,000, and three in 2024 for $75,000. All notes carry a 12% annual interest rate, accruing
$38,696 in interest. As of the issuance date of the financial statements all of the notes were in default. The maturity
dates for these notes were August 31, 2021 (two notes), September 30, 2022, May 31, 2024, January 31, 2025, and
March 31, 2025.

As of December 31, 2024, the Company had three notes from a member of the Company’s board, totaling $45,000
issued in 2024. The annual interest rate on all notes is 12%. The accrued interest on these notes is $2,875. As of the
issuance date of the financial statements, all of the notes were in default. The maturity dates were February 28, 2024,
May 31, 2024 and March 31, 2025.

Note 6 — Convertible Notes

During 2024, the Company issued convertible notes for cash proceeds of $300,000. The convertible notes have a
stated interest rate of 12% per annum. Principal and accrued interest are due 12 months from the date of each Note
unless converted as discussed below, repaid, or extended. The Notes are convertible under a (i) qualified equity
financing.

At maturity, the notes and accrued interest are payable in full upon a qualified equity financing event the principal and
accrued interest are automatically convertible to the Company’s common stock. The number of shares will be equal
to the quotient obtained by dividing (i) the outstanding principal and accrued interest by (ii) 20% or 30% of the price
paid compared to the price paid by investors in the Qualified Equity Financing. The 20% or 30% conversion discount
is determinant upon if the note holder is a qualified early investor.
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The Convertible Notes are automatically convertible in the event Innovega consummates prior to the Maturity Date,
an equity financing pursuant to which it issues and sells shares of a series of its preferred or common stock of the
Company (the “New Stock™) with an aggregate sale price of not less than $1,000,000 (*Qualified Equity Financing™).
Qualified Early Investor “Qualified Early Investor “shall mean a Subscriber, who either (i) was a shareholder of the
Company as of September 30, 2024 and has a note in the original principal amount of at least $20,000 or (ii) has an
original principal amount of at least $30,000.

The Company identified an embedded note feature within its convertible note that qualifies as a derivative under ASC
815, Derivatives and Hedging. The derivative liability was initially recognized at fair value upon issuance on
December 31, 2024, and is remeasured at each reporting date, with changes in fair value recorded in the statement of
operations. The fair value is determined using the Differential Valuation Approach, comparing the note’s value with
and without the redemption feature. A probability of 100% was applied to the successful consummation of a Qualified
Financing or Event at issuance and as of December 31, 2024. The derivative liability’s fair value was $90,000, both
at issuance, and at the end of the reporting period, with no changes in fair value recorded as of December 31, 2024.

The Company classified the convertible note as a current liability with a principal amount of $300,000. The note debt
discount of $13,000 related to issuance costs, and an additional debt discount of $90,000 attributed to the derivative
liability. As of December 31, 2024, the net carrying amount was $211,057. The Company recognized noncash interest
expense of $14,057 on the income statement as of that date. The remaining unamortized debt discount as of December
31, 2024 was $88,943.

Note 7 — Stockholders” Deficit

Preferred Stock

The following is a summary of terms for the preferred stock:

Issued and
Shares Outstanding
Authorized Shares
Series A-1 Preferred Stock 5,000,000 2,565,186
Series A-2 Preferred Stock 1,610,514 1,610,514
Series A-3 Preferred Stock 1,123,787 1,123,787
Series Seed Preferred Stock 3,518,238 3,518,238
Undesignated (authorized Preferred--none issued) 5,000,000 0
TOTAL PREFERRED STOCK 16,252,539 8,817,725

Conversion — Each share of Preferred Stock shall be convertible, at the option of the holder thereof, at any time after
the date of issuance of such share into that number of fully-paid, nonassessable shares of Common Stock determined
by dividing the Original Issue Price for the relevant series by the Conversion Price for such series. Upon any decrease
or increase in the Conversion Price for any series of Preferred Stock, as described in the Section 4 of the Company’s
Charter, the conversion rate for such series shall be appropriately increased or decreased.

“Conversion Price” means $1.6154 per share for the Series Seed Preferred Stock, $2.9157 per share for the Series A-
1 Preferred Stock, $1.6401 per share for the Series A-2 Preferred Stock and $2.0297 per share for the Series A-3
Preferred Stock (subject to adjustment from time to time).

*Conversion Rate” means 1.0265 per share for the Series Seed Preferred Stock, 1.0289 per share for the Series A-1
Preferred Stock, 1.0172 per share for the Series A-2 Preferred Stock and 1.0223 per share for the Series A-3 Preferred
Stock (subject to adjustment from time to time).
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Each share of Preferred Stock shall automatically be converted into fully paid, non-assessable shares of Common
Stock at the then effective conversion rate for such share (i) immediately prior to the closing of a firm commitment
underwritten initial public offering pursuant to an effective registration statement

filed under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, covering the offering and sale of the Corporation’s Common Stock
provided that the aggregate gross proceeds to the Corporation are not less than $5,000,000, (ii) the written request for
such conversion from the holders of the majority of Preferred Stock then outstanding voting as a single class and an
as converted basis, or, (iii) upon the prior cumulative conversion of a majority of the Preferred Stock.

Liguidation preference — In the event of a liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of the Company, holders of any series
of preferred stock are entitled to receive, prior and in preference to any distribution of any of the assets of the Company
to the holders of the Common Stock, an amount per share for each share of preferred stock held by them equal to the
Liquidation Preference specified for such share of that series of preferred stock, plus all declared but unpaid dividends
(if any) on such share.

Liquidation Preference means $1.6583 per share for the Series Seed Preferred Stock, $3.00 per share for the Series
A-1 Preferred Stock, $1.66829 per share for the Series A-2 Preferred Stock and $2.075 per share for the Series A-3
Preferred Stock (subject to adjustment from time to time.

The value of the liquidation preferences for Series Seed Preferred Stock, Series A-1 Preferred Stock, Series A-2
Preferred Stock and Series A-3 Preferred Stock are $5,988,903, $7,917,960, $2,733,017 and $2,383,858, respectively,
for a total liquidation value of $19,023,738.

Thereafter, any remaining funds of the Company shall be distributed with equal priority and pro rata among the holders
of common stock in proportion to the total common stock outstanding. In the event that any liquidation, dissolution
or winding-up of the Company would result in proceeds per share in excess of the liquidation preference payable to
any series of preferred stock, then the shares of such series of preferred stock shall forgo such liquidation preference
and instead participate with common stock on a pro-rata, as-converted basis as if all such shares of preferred stock
had been converted to common stock immediately prior to the liquidation event.

If upon the liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company, the assets of the Company legally available for
distribution to the holders of the preferred stock are insufficient to permit the payment to such holders of the full
amounts, then the entire assets of the Company legally available for distribution shall be distributed with equal priority
and pro rata among the holders of each series of preferred stock in proportion to the full amounts they would otherwise
be entitled to receive.

For the year ended December 31, 2023, the Company issued an additional 74,997 shares of Series A-1 Preferred Stock
for $233,561 (net of issuance costs). Additionally, the Company issued an additional 41,665 shares of Series A-1
Preferred Stock and 83,330 of common stock purchase warrants in exchange for the forgiveness of $125,000 of
shareholder notes from two noteholders.

For the year ended December 31, 2024, the Company issued 233,324 shares of Series A-1 Preferred Stock for
$700,000 (net of issuance costs). Additionally, the Company issued 183,326 warrants in conjunction with the Series
A-1 Preferred Stock. These warrants have an exercise price of $0.001, a life of five years, and vest immediately upon
exercise.
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Dividends — Holders of preferred stock are entitled to receive, when, as and if declared by the Board of Directors, out
of funds legally available and in preference to any other payment of any dividend or distribution, non-cumulative cash
dividends at the Dividend Rate for each share of preferred stock (adjusted for any stock splits, stock dividends,
combinations, subdivisions, recapitalizations or the like). In the event the Board of Directors declares a dividend
payable upon the then outstanding shares of common stock, convertible preferred stockholders shall be entitled to
receive the amount of dividends per share which would he payable on the number of whole shares of common stock
into which each share of convertible preferred stock could be converted. No dividends have been declared or paid to
date.

“Dividend Rate” shall mean an annual rate of $0.1326 per share for the Series Seed Preferred Stock, an annual rate of
$0.24 per share for the Series A-1 Preferred Stock, an annual rate of $0.13346 per share for the Series A-2 Preferred
Stock and an annual rate of $0.166 per share for the Series A-3 Preferred Stock.

Voting — Holders of preferred stock and the holders of common stock shall vote together and not as separate classes.
Holders of preferred stock are entitled to the number of votes equal to the number of shares of common stock into
which the shares of preferred stock held by such holder could be converted as of the record date. Each holder of shares
of common stock are entitled to one vote for each share thereof held.

Redemption — Except in the case of a liquidation event, preferred stock is not redeemable.

Additional rights —Pursuant to the Amended and Restated Stockholders’ Agreement, at each annual meeting of the
stockholders of the Company or any meeting of the stockholders of the Company at which members of the Board of
Directors are to be elected by the stockholders, the stockholders who are parties to this Agreement will agree to vote
their shares to elect:

two (2) Officer Designees as Common Directors;
one (1) Common Designee as a Common Director; and
one (1) Series Seed Designee as the Series Seed Director.

(a) The “Officer Designees™ shall be Stephen Willey and Jerome Legerton for so long as
Stephen Willey and Jerome Legerton remain officers, employees or consultants of the Company, except that if Stephen
Willey or Jerome Legerton declines or is unable to serve, their successors shall be designated by the holders of a
majority of the shares of Common Stock held by all Common Holders.

(b) The “Common Designee™ shall be chosen by the Common Holders holding at least a
majority of the shares of Common Stock held by all Common Holders, and who will initially be Shane Kim.

(¢) The “Series Seed Designee™ shall be chosen by the Investors holding at least a majority
of the outstanding shares of Series Seed Preferred Stock subject to the approval of the other

members of the Board, whose consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, and who will initially be Jeff Bradley.

Other than in connection with a best efforts or firm commitment underwritten public offering or an offering pursuant
to Regulation A under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended the Company pursuant to the Stockholders™ Agreement
the Company granted to (1) each Major Seed Investor (each Investor that holds at least 60,302 shares of Series Seed
Preferred Stock) and (2) each Investor that holds shares of Series A Preferred Stock representing an aggregate of at
least $100.000 (each, a “Major Series A Investor™) (the Major Seed Investors together with the Major Series A
Investors, the “Major Preferred Investors™), that qualifies as an “accredited investor”™ under Regulation D of the
Securities Act, the right of first offer to purchase its pro rata share of new securities, which the Company may propose
to sell and issue.
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Common Stock

In November 2024, the Company entered into a lease modification agreement with the landlord of its San Diego, CA
facility. As part of that agreement, the Company issued 50,000 common shares valued at $0.97 per share totaling
$48,500 in consideration for modifying the lease agreement. The consideration was included in the operating lease as
detailed in Note 10.

Warrants

Warrants consist of the following at December 31, 2024 and 2023:

Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Exercise Remaining
Vested and Nonvested Warrants Number Price Life
Outstanding December 31, 2023 408,324 0.001 3.9
Granted 516,648 0.001
Exercised (299,988) 0.001
Expired or forfeited - -
Outstanding December 31, 2024 624,984 0.001 4.1

The fair value of warrants for 2024 was based on an estimated fair market value of the Company’s common stock of
$0.97 due to the immaterial exercise price. The fair value for year ended December 31, 2023 was estimated on the
date of grant using the Black-Scholes method with the following assumptions:

2023
Weighted-Average Life 5.0
Exercise Price $ 0.001
Volatility 67%
Risk-Free Rate 3%
FMV of Stock at Grant Date $ 0.001
Intrinsic Value $ 130

All warrants have a life of 5 years with expiration dates in 2028 and 2029. All warrants have an exercise price of
$0.001 per share. As the Company does not have a public trading history for its common shares, the expected volatility
incorporates historical volatility of similar entities whose share prices are publicly available. The risk-free interest rate
is based upon U.S. Treasury securities with remaining terms similar to the expected term of the share-based awards.

Note 8 — Stock Based Compensation

Stock options — In 2008, the Company adopted the 2008 Equity Incentive Plan (the Equity Incentive Plan) that
provides for the issuance of up to 1,000,000 incentive and nonqualified common stock options to employees, directors,
officers, and consultants of the Company. As of January 1, 2016, the Company had authorized the issuance of up to
1,950,000 incentive and nonqualified common stock options. On June 11, 2017, the Company authorized an additional
1,952,732 shares of common stock for issuance under the Plan. As of December 31, 2024, there were 1,998,515 shares
available for grant under the Plan. The Equity Incentive Plan provides for the grant of incentive stock option and non-
statutory stock options awards to eligible recipients. Recipients of incentive stock options shall be eligible to purchase
shares of the Company’s common stock at an exercise price equal to no less than the estimated fair market value of
such stock on the date of grant. The contractual term of options granted under the Equity Incentive Plan is ten years.
The options generally vest over the requisite service period of four years. The following table summarizes the
Company’s stock option activity:
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Stock options consist of the following at December 31, 2024 and 2023:

Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Exercise Remaining
Vested and Nonvested Stock Options Number Price Life
Outstanding December 31, 2023 3,670,914 0.47 3.9
Granted - . -
Exercised - -
Expired or forfeited (1,766,697) 0.68
Outstanding December 31, 2024 1,904,217 0.60 4.1
Vested as of December 31, 2024 1,688,800 0.55 2.1
Shares expected to vest 215,417 0.81 2.3

Remaining stock option compensation expense for existing unvested options is estimated to be;

Years Ended
2025 $94,734
2026 $ 1,794

Restricted stock awards - In January and August 2024, under the 2008 Equity Incentive Plan the Company issued
restricted stock awards to certain employees and advisors totaling 775,000 awards valued at $0.97 per share. 50% of
the restricted stock awards vest immediately and the remaining 50% vest annually over the following two years on
the anniversary date.

Restricted stock awards consist of the following at December 31, 2024 and 2023:

Vested and Nonvested RSA’s Number

Outstanding December 31, 2023 -
Granted 775,000
Exercised -
Expired or forfeited -
Outstanding December 31, 2024 775,000
Vested at end of year 497,917
Shares expected to vest 277,083

Remaining restricted stock awards compensation expense for existing unvested awards is estimated to be;

Years Ended
2025 $211,177
2026 $ 50,925

Stock Based Compensation- For the year ended December 31 2024 the Company recorded $612,174 in stock based
compensation in conjunction with stock options and restricted stock awards. Stock based compensation expense was
recorded in the amount of $338,099 to general and administrative, $225,576 to research and development and $48,500
to sales and marketing.
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Note 9 — Income Taxes

Significant components of the Company’s deferred tax assets at December 31 are shown below. A valuation allowance
of $4,418,098 has been recorded at December 31, 2024, to offset the deferred tax assets as realization of such assets
does not meet the “more likely than not™ threshold. The change in the valuation allowance was $(448,914) and
$(415,328) for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

2024 2023
Deferred tax assets
Accrual to cash $ 557,717 % 450,419
Net operating loss carryforwards 3,361,873 3,184,539
Intangibles 31,501
Section 174 costs 458,019 349,757
ROU Liability 55,212 75,786
Accrued Interest 96,839 17,777
Other 211,487 145,291
Total deferred tax assets $ 4741147 % 4,315,070
Deferred tax liabilities
Intangibles $ (257,978) $ (267,295)
ROU Asset (63,172) (71,614)
Other (1,899) (6,977)
Total deferred tax liabilities $ (323,049) $ (345,886)
Net deferred tax assets before valuation allowance $ 4418098 $ 3,969,184
Less valuation allowance (4,418,098) (3,969,184)
Net deferred tax assets $ - $ -

At December 31, 2024, the Company has federal net operating loss carryforwards of $16,008,917 which will he
available indefinitely. Utilization of the net operating loss may be subject to a substantial annual limitation due to
ownership change limitations that may have occurred or that could occur in the future, as required by IRC Section
382.

The Company applies authoritative guidance relating to the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes. The guidance
outlines the recognition threshold and measurement attributes for financial statement disclosure of tax positions taken,
or expected to be taken, on a tax return. The impact of an uncertain income tax position on the income tax return must
be recognized at the largest amount that is more likely than not to be sustained upon audit by the relevant taxing
authority. An uncertain tax position will not be recognized if it has a less than 50% likelihood of being sustained.

There are no unrecognized tax benefits included in the Company’s balance sheet at December 31, 2024 and 2023. The
Company has not recorded any interest or penalties due to uncertain tax positions.

The Company’s effective tax rate differs from the amount computed by applying the statutory federal income tax rate
of 21% to pre-tax losses due to the effects of nondeductible items and the valuation allowance. The Company files an
income tax return in the U.S. Federal, Florida and California jurisdictions. Generally the Company’s statute of
limitations remains open for tax years since 2011 due to the net operating loss carry forwards.
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Note 10 — Right of Use - Operating

Operating leases — The Company leases office space in San Diego, California and Bellevue, Washington. Rental
expense for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, totaled $143,938 and $127,287, respectively. This expense
is recorded as part of the Company’s research and development costs.

The Company rents office space in Bellevue, Washington for its administrative office that is currently on a month-to-
month basis.

In October 2021, the Company entered into a new 62 (sixty-two) month lease in San Diego, California (“the San
Diego office™) starting January 2022 for 5,243 rentable square feet. This lease is classified as an operating lease. Base
rent is $1.55/sf with 3% annual increases. Operating expenses are estimated to be $0.42/sf of which the Company’s
share is 7.04%. Additionally, the landlord has provided Innovega a $15/sf tenant improvement allowance. All tenant
improvements are repaid and amortized over the life of the lease.

In November 2024, the Company entered into a lease modification with the landlord of the San Diego office. In
exchange for applying the remaining security deposit of $119,866 to unpaid rent and acceleration of tenant
improvement payments leaving an estimated balance due of $59,657, the Company has agreed to make certain
minimum payments of $8,827 through February 2025 and then beginning in March 2025 to pay the full monthly rent
obligation. The Company has agreed to pay $20,000 additional security deposit by March 31, 2025. This payment has
not yet been made. Additionally, the Company has also agreed to issue 50,000 shares of Innovega common shares
valued at $0.97 per share to the landlord and to pay the landlord 10% of any funding event in excess of $200,000
toward the account balance with the full remaining balance due on March 31, 2025.

The Company has classified the San Diego office as an operating lease. The Company has used an 11% discount rate
to determine the present value of its lease obligations and the imputed interest portion of its lease liability. For the
year ended December 31, 2024, the right to use asset and lease liability was revalued at $300,818 and $208,162,
respectively,

As of December 31, 2024, future minimum rental payments required under operating leases and services agreements
that have initial or remaining noncancelable lease terms in excess of one year are as follows:

2025 $ 106,562
2026 109,759
2027 18,842
Total lease payments 235,163
Imputed interest (27,001)
Lease liability $ 208,162
Short-term lease liability $ 88,014
Long-term lease liability 120,148

Total lease liability $ 208,162
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Note 11 — Related Party Transactions

The Company had $1,367,729 and $1,349,104 in deferred compensation as of December 31, 2024 and December 31,
The CCO is no longer with the Company therefore these liabilities have been classified as long-term liabilities as the
Company does not expect to pay out any deferred compensation in the following twelve months.

Note 12 — Defined Contribution Plan

The Company has established a 401(k) plan, a defined contribution plan for its employees, with eligibility
commencing on an employee’s date of hire. Contributions to the 401(k) plan are based on a percentage of the
employee’s gross compensation, limited by Internal Revenue Service guidelines for such plans. The Company made
matching contributions to the plan for the years ending December 31, 2024 and 2023, of $12,281 and $18,041,
respectively.

The Company will match employee 401k contributions to a maximum of 4% of each gross payroll amount. Innovega
will cover the expense of an online service and of an asset manager who will offer employees a variety of investment
portfolios.

Note 13 — Subsequent Events

The Company evaluated subsequent events through May 29, 2025, the date on which these financial statements were
available to be issued.

Eighteen convertible notes with acceptance dates ranging from January 2025 to May 20, 2025, totaling $550,000 were
issued at an annual interest rate of 12%. Unless automatically converted earlier during an equity 